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Punongbouon E Atuullo

20$ Floor. Tow€.1

Th6 Enterprise Center

6766 Agolo Avenue

1200 Mokoti C;tg

Philippines

T.63 2 8988 2288

The Board of Directo.s
lnvestors Securities, lnc.
Unit 604-605 Tower One and Exchange Plaza
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City

We have audited the financial slatements of lnvestors Securities, lnc, (the Company) for
the year ended Oecember 3'l. 2022, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
April4, ?023.

ln compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is
related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholders of the
Company.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Mary Grace A. Puna
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0116576
TtN 244-931-755
PTR No. 796230'1, January 13, 2023. City of Davao
SEC Group A Accreditation

Partner - No. 116576-SEC (until financial period 2025)
Firm - No. 0002 (until Oec.31,2024)

BIR AN 08-00251 'l 443-2021 (until Nov.9,2024)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until 4u9.27,20241

Aptil4, 2023

grontthor.lon com.ph
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The Board of Directors
lnvestors Securities, lnc.
Unit 604-605 Tower One and Exchange Plaza
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the flnancial position of the Company as at Oecember 31, 2022 and 202'l , and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Aud,lors' Rasponslb,Tlties
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the
Ilnancial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibililies
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is suflicienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

euno.gbosoi c aoslb Paa) k oE pri[epim mmbr 66 oI Grcnl Thdnb 1tu6ffir kd

&lal orc c.r ol P€" tla 0@2

grontthomton.com.ph
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We have audited the financial statements of lnvestors Securities, lnc. (the Company), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial slalements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ot the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as managemenl determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibrllties for the Audit of the Financial Stalemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audil conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Iinancial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentalions, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Certilied Public Acc&ntonts
Purcngbouon E Aroullo [PeA] is the PhilippiG memb€r im ol Grcnt nwnton lntemotohot Ltd.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Responsibi/ilres of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial slatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves rair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in inlernal control thal we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended
December 31 , 2022 requted by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 22 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with pFRS. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic flnancial statements
taken as a whole.

PUNONGAAYAN & ARAULLO

By; Mary Grace A. Punay
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0116576
TIN 244-931-755
PTR No. 7962301, January '13,2023, City of Davao
SEC Group A Accreditation

Partner - No. 116576-SEC (untilfinanciat period 2025)
Farm - No. 0002 (until Oec. 31 , 2024\

BIR AN 08-00251'l{43-2021 (until Nov. 9, 2024)
Firm s BOAJPRC Cert. ol Reg. No. 0002 (unlil Aug.27.2024)

Ap(i\4,2023

C€dliad Public Ac@ntont.
Puno^gboson t Arcullo [peA] i. thc phitippire emb.. fid oi G@nr TlEntd t.t€@ridot ttd_



TN\/ESTORS SECURITIIiS, INCORPORATED
604.605 TOWER ONE & EXCHANGE PLAZA. AYALA TRIANGLE

AYALA AVENUE. MAKATI C:ITY

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEi'ENTS

The management of lnvestorc Securities, lnc. (the Company) is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial staternents, including the schedules attachod therein, for the years ended
December 31 , 2022 and 2021 , in accordance with the prescribed flnancial reporting framework indicated
therein, and for such intemal conlrol as management determines it necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, manag€ment is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concem basis of acccunting unless management either ir ends to liquidate the Cornpany or to cease
operations, or has no realislic altemative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, includirE the sclEdules aftached
therean, and submits the same to the stockholders,

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent audrtors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial
statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the
stockholders, have expressed lheir opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

..-Cl
W|LLIATII B. GO

an of the

ALINE G. SY
President

reasurer

Signed this 4th day of APrr I 2023.

tl

G. DI
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INVESTORS SECURITIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3T,MU AND 2-027

(Anrounts in Philippizc Pesos)

Notes 2022 2i21

INCOME

Gain on salc of iovcsunents at fryTPL - nct
Dividends

Rcflr'ii

Frir \:'lu. rxnrs oosses) .)n iovcsrmcnts tr Ir\TPL - nct

COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Silxrics :rnd cnrplo\,ce bcncrilr
Pnnissxinxl f(cs

Si()(i (\rhrn1rc rccs xnd clucs

(i,,nd,,nlurum ricJ :rod ducs

Dcprc!ixri,)n and im(xtizlEon
Lrrilirirs

Rcpairs ani.l maint€oance

lirnsF)nrti()n aod travel

-\d!crrisfirg

rNcoME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX

TAX EXPENSE

NET INCOME (LOSS)

oTgEa CoMPIEHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSS)

kems thzt \r.ill not bc r€classificd subsequendy
to Profit or 1066

Frir valuc grins (losscs) on araansial $sc$ at filr valuc through

oth<r c0nrprchensi!€ inc0m€ - n€t

Remeasurements of post-mployment dcfincd
bcncht obligatioo

Tix incomc (cxpense)

TOTAI COttPREHENST!'E TNCOME (LOSS)

2

5

5

t7

li

t5

ll

8.9

t.l

5

l5

l6

3,192,968 )

84,34

rr,537,189

186537

P 3J87,818

1882,391
2,E58,439

2,263,0E0

634,257 \
307,331

6,117351'

24,t)11165

2,240,194

2,263.O4U

1,530,146

152314

P

1 ,064,602 36,380,55-

5,669,925

3Jr0,683
75A,4U
731,510

66434,
(fr1423

392?S
110,665

56,251

1,962,101

6.391,626

16,2(rl,l9lt
255,$4.1

900,924

624,535

531,316

927 213
96,074

280.949

1,565226

14,251,570 ..+.. .

3,211,311

( t,6E0,000 ) 14,664,000

421,775

3,420,000

859t32
3,9 t-2,4<xt

( 9,838,225 ) 11,551,r,12

( P 13,115,539 P 19,901,834

Sce Not$ .o Financial Statcmcnts.

(

(

(
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INVESTORS SECURITIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE \€ARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,20n AND 2021
(Amoun6 ih Philippine Pesos)

N(,Irs 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
lnronr( i'l,,ss) bcfor( tx\
.Ulrustmcnts ft)r:

D'\idcnds
Fair yaluc losses G:ins) on inlesrmcnrs ar F\TPL - ncr
Dcprcciation and :rmomzauon

lnrcresr;nconr€

Inrprirmenr (reversal of impdmeni) losses

( )pcmdng inconc (loss) bcforc s'otking capicrl chrngcs
Dccrcrsc io invcstmcnts rt ln'TPI-
Dcrrrrse in rcc<itrbl< fr(,m cusr,,me.s

lncrcirse in otber asscts

lncrcrsc (decre.lse) in payrble to customers

Decrease in pe,lable to clearing house

Decrease (increese) in other payables

Cxsh Gscd in) glncratcd fronr opcrations

Dil idends received

Intcrcst reeiverl
(:rsh p:r ri,r finrl tr\es

Ncr Cish l-rom (Uscd rn) Opcrating .\crivrtics

CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY -
Acqutsuions of properrv :rnd equipmenr

NET (DECREASE) TNCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

CASTI AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF 1EAR

CASH AND CASH EQUTVAI-ENTS AT END OF IEAR

(P 3,192,968) P E,s37,389

(

Scc Notcs to Fintncirl Stnaenrcnts.

2,24t,t91)
1.530,116 )

624,i15

123,934 )
13,642 )

5253,988

I,526,0t{,
4?8,160

1219,881)
52,m5

2,651,1',t9 )
3,851,924

5

5

E.'
4,t4

2,E58,239 )
634,257

664,i42
20E,521)

4)67
( 4,956,762 )

2,4E3,959

t39,291
845,987 )
943,721)

1237 234',)
3,199,133

(
(
(
(

(
5

I6

?,859,587 )
2,t58,239

172,631

34,754 )(

7 2W7t
224,194

I19,660

24,191

(

4,863,471) 9,625,511

170,634 )( 88,390

5,034,105 ) 9,537,1{4

43,127,195 33,590,051

P 38,093,090 P 43,12:,195

(
(

(

)



INVESTORS SECURITIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2022 Al{D 2027
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

1.1 Corporatelnfonnaion

Investors Securities, Inc. (the Company) uas incorporated in the Philippines on
April 16, 1969 to enlpge primarill in the stock brokerage business and to deal in securities
and all activities direcdt' connecred therewith or incidental thereto. OnJune 6,2016, the
Company amended its articles of incorporadon and br-larvs to extend the term of the
Company for another 50 years from and after April 16,2019, The amendment to the
articles of incorporation and bl'-laws was approved br. the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SF.C) on August 3, 2016.

The Companv is a member of the Philippine Stock Exchange (?SE) and operates within
d-re Philippines.

T1.re Company's registered office, which is also its principal place ofbusiness, is located
at Unit 604-605 Tower One and Exchange Plaza, Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue,
ilIakati City.

The financial statements ofthe Company as at and for the year ended Decembet 31,2022
(including the comparative financial sutements as at and for the year ended
Decembcr 31,2021) wcre authorized for issue by the Board of Directors @OD) on
.\pril 1,2023.

1.2 Impact of Russia - Ukraine Conllict and Continuing Inpact of COVID-|9
Pandemic on the Company's Business

The CO\1D-'19 pandemic and the contairunent measures implemented by the
government disrupted domestic businesses and trade. Although the spread of rhe virus
has abated, and most of health and safety restrictions haye been rela-red, and businesses
have re-opened as of the cnd of 2022, the threat ofnew variants of the !'irus remain.

The Company being in the securities industry was heat'ily affected by the spur of
inflationarv pressures leading to a slow global gowth due to the ongoing Russia-Uknine
conflict. The persistent inflation and dghter Enancial condition have caused the
downward traiecton' of the markeg hence incurring significant fair vdue losses on its
financial asscts during the vear.

Tlre combined continuing e ffects oiCOYID-19 outbreak and the decline in tlre market
hampered the anticipated business recovery of the Corrpany during the 1,sa1.

llanagement will continue to take actions to continually improve tlre operations as the
need arises. Based on the foregoiog improvements, management projects that the
C<.rmpanv would continue to report positive results of operations and would remain liquid
to meet current obligations as they fal.l due. Accordingly, management has not determined
rnaterial uncertainq rhat mal cast significant doubt on the Cornpany's ability to continue
as a going concern due to the eFfects of the pandemic.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation ofthese
financial statements are summarized in the succeeding pages. These policies have beeo
consistendy applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

2. 1 B asis of Prepara tion of Fin ancial Statemen ts

(,, .ftatene* af Conplia ce witlt Philippirc Firu cial Rtportitg.ltandardt

The financial statements of the Company have been prepated in accordance witlr
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards @FRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial and Sustainabiliw Reporting Standards Council (FSRSQ from the
pronourccmcnrc issucd bv thc Intemational Accounting Standards Board, rnd
approved bv the Philippine Boatd ofAccountanc\'.

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS firr each npe of asset, liabilitl, income and expense. The measurement
bases are more fulh described in the accoundng policies that follow.

(b) Preterttatiott ol Finmdal .llatemnts

The Frnancial statcmcnrs arc prescnted in accordancc with Philippine Accounting
Standards QAS) 1, Pruentation 0-f Pinarlcial Stdtcrrlcnlr. The Company presents all items
of income and expense and otler comprehensive income or loss in a single
statement of comprehensive income.

The Companv presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding pcriod whcn it applies an accounting policy retrospectivelv, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the
inforrnation in the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period. The related notes to the third statement of frnancial position are not
required to be disclosed.

(,) Functional arul Prcsu atiou CtrntcT

These financial statenlents are presented in Philippine pesos, the Companv's
functional and presentation currenc,y, and all values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.

Items includcd in the financial statements of the Company are measured using its
functional currency. Functional cumency is the currency of the primary econom.ic
enrironment in which the Company operates.

(,1) Secaiy Llahafon

Thc securitv position of customers classificd as long position pcrtains to shares of
stock that a customer bought with the expectation that the shares will rise in value.
The corresponding locations of these shates are also indicated.
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2.2 Adoption ofAmended PFRS

t, Etetik i 2022 tlt.tl arc Rrlerunl to the Contpanl

Thc Companv ad()pted fbr the first time the following amendments and annual
improvcmcnts to PIiRS, s,hich ars mandatorilv eitective tbr annual periods
bcginning on or afterJanuar1 1,2022:

PAS 16 (Amendments) : Propern, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
Bef<rre Intended Use

Pr\S 37 (Amcndnicnts) : Provisions, Contingcnt Liabilitics and
Contingent Assets - C)nerous
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual lmprovements to
PFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)

PFRS 9 (Amendments)

PFRS 16 (Amendments)

Financial Instrumen$ - Fees in the
'10 per cent'Test for Derecognition
of Liabiltie s

kases - I-ease Incentives

Discussed below are the relevant information about these pronouncements.

(i) Annual PAS 16 (Amcndmcnts), Pruperg, Plant ard Eqripm - Pmaedr Blfon
Intendcd L.ix. The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of propern, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
u,'hile bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entit! recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, in profit or loss. The applicadon of these
amendments had no significant impact on the Company's financial
statements as there were no sales of such items produced by property and
cquipmcnt madc before being available f<rr use on or after the beginning of
the earliest period presented.

(it) PAS 37 (Amendments), Pmrision4 Contingent Uabiltia a,td Czttirlgent Arsets -
Onem*s Conlracts - Co$ of F flling a Contrart The amendments speciS that
v'hen assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs

to includc c<.rsts that rclatc dirccdy to x contract to provide g<xrds or services.
Costs that relate direcdy to a contract hclude both incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labor and materials) or an allocadon of
other costs that rclare direcdv to fulhlling contracts (e.g., the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of properw, plant and equipment used in
tulfilling the cofltract). Tte amendments resulted in a revision in the
Company's policy to includc both incrcmcntal costs and an allocation of othcr
costs when determining whether a contract was onerous.
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(iii) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2018-2020 Cycle. Among the
improvements, thc f<.rllowing amendments which do not have significant
impact and which are effective from January 1, 2022, are relevant to the
Company's fi nancial statements:

PFRS 9 (Amendmetts), Financial Insnrtlexts - Fees in tbe '10 percnt'Test

Jbr Dencogtition of Uabilitiet. The amendments clari$' the fees that ao
entity includes when assessing whether the terms ofa new or modified
financial liabilig' are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liabiliq. These fees include only those paid or received
benveen the borrou'er and the leoder, including fees paid or received bv
either the borrorver or lender on the otlrer's behalf.

Illustrative Examples Accompanl,ing PFRS 16, ltaset - ltase Incefiit'es.
The amendrnents remove potential for confusion regarding lease
incentives bt' deleting ftom Illustrative Example 13 the reimbursement
relating t<.r leasehold improvemeots as it had not been explained clearll
enough as to whether the reimbursement would rneet the definition of a

lease incentive in accordance with PFRS 16.

(b) Efecriae in 2022 rbd an not Rele.uant to tbe ConpattJ

Among the amendments to PFRS which are mandatorily effective for annual
periods beginning on or afterJanuary 1,2022, the following are not relevant to the
Company's financial statemcnts:

0 PFRS 3 (Amendments), Bsrirus Conhinatiottt - Referctce to tbe Conceptual

Frarneyork

(ii) Annual Imprx.ements to PFRS 2018-2020 Cvcle:

PPRS 1, Fint-f ne AtlEion of Pbilippine Financial Reporting ,ftandards -
Slabsidiary at a Fir -tinte Adopter

b . P LS 4'L , Agriulnre - I'axation in Fair Valae Meastnruerts

O Efectiae Sfisequent to 2022 bt rut Adop*d Earll

There are amendments to existing sandards effective for annual periods
subsequent to 2022, s,hich are adopted by the FSRSC. Management will adopt
the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitional
provisions; and, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Companv's financial statements:

(, PAS 1 (Amendments), Pz.n*ation of Firuncial S)ta*nents - Clastficatiol oJ

Ijabilities qs Camnt or Nott-atrert (effecive fromJznuary 1,2023)

(iD PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments), Prcsentatior of f*iraacial
Statetnntr - Discloure oJ Arcomtitg Policiu (effecive kom Jar,ua* 1, ?023)

(iii) PAS 8 (Amendrnents), AccornlingEstinatus - Def nitiott oJ Accornting Ettimatet
(effective from Jantary 1,2023)

a
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(n') PAS 12 (Amendments), Irume Trxu - DeJimd Tax Rclated to Asets and
Liabilitie: Arbiry lwru a Singh Transactioz (e ffcctivc From Januan' 1,2023)

2.3 SecuritiesTransactions

Securities transactions and related commission revenues and expenses (see Note 2,12) are

recorded on a transaction-date basis. Significant related expenses in these transactioos are

prcscntcd as Stock Exchange Fees and Dues in the statement of comprehensive income.
This account includes:

(.) fees paid to PSE, SEC and Securities Inr.estors Protection Fund for every trade
transaction made by the Company relative to the respective volumes of such
transactions urhich are recognized as expense on the date thev are incutred; and,

2. 4 Curren t vers us l.{on -curren t Classifi ca tion

Thc Companr. presents assets and liabilities in thc statcment of financiai position based
on current or nofl-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;
held primarilv for the purpose of trading;
expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; or,
cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setde a

liability frrr at least 12 months after the teporting period.

,1ll other assets are classi6ed as non-curfent

,\ lirbilin is currcnt rvhcn

It is expected to be setded in normal operating cycle;
It is held primaril-l' for the pulpose of trading;
It is due to be setded'nithin 12 monttrs after the reporting period; oq
There is no unconditional right to defer the setdement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabfities as noo-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities.

(1r) Phiiippine Central Depository charges, which refer to depository maintenance fees

fr>r the custr>mer acc()unts of the Companl maintained s,ith the Philippine
Depositon' and Trust Corporation (?DTC), the indepcndent custodian of
scripless securities u,hich are traded in the PSF,, u,hich are recogoized as expeflse
upon utilization of the sen'ice <.rf the PDTC.
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2.5 Financiallnstrument€

Financial assets and financial liabil.ities are recognized ,*'hen the entity becomes a parry

t() the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

(a) Finaxcial .4aea

For purposcs of classifuing financial asscts, an instrument is considered as ao equiry

instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the definition of equiw for the issuer in
accordance with the criteria ofPAS 32, Firancial lnttutmerls: Presentatiott. All other
nr.rn-derivative financial instruments are treated as debt instruments.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on theit trade date

(i.e., the date that the Companv commits to purchase or sell the asset).

(i) Clds$ication, Meautrcant and RulasiJicatior of Financial Asvts

The classification and measurement of financial assets is dtiven by the

Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flou' characteristics ofthe financial assets. The classification and
measurement of f-inancial assets are described belou' and in the succeeding

pages.

Fimncial --1svls -lnortizetl Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized c<.rst if both of the following
conditions are met:

the asset is held within the Company's business model whose obiective is

to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
('hold to collecC); and,

o the cootractual terms of the instrument give rise, on sPecified dates, to cash

flows that are "solely pal,rnents of principal and interests" (SPPI) on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial asscts mecting thcse critcria arc measured initially at fair value plus

transaction costs. Thel'are subsequendv measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method, less allowance f<rr expected credit krsses (ECL).

The Companv's flnancial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement

of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivable from Customers,

and Other Asscts (in relation to Clearing and trade guaranty fund and Other
receivables).
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For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentadon, cash and cash

equivalcnts comprise accounts with original maturities of three months or less,

including cash in banks. These generallv include demand deposis and

short-term highl,r liquid invesmrents rvhich are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Financial Asefi at Fair Vaht T'bmt€lt Other CortPnbenir, Incone (Fl'OCI)

The Companr accounts for Iinancial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the
following conditions:

thel are held under a business model u,hose obiective is to hold to collect the
ass<.,ciared cash 0<.rws and sell ('hold to collect and sell"); and,

o the contractual terms ofthe financial assets give rise to cash flov's that are

SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

At initial recogrrition, the Company can make an irrevocable election
(on an instrument-bv-instrument basis) to designate equiry investments as at

FVOCI; however, such designation is not permitted if the equity .investrnent is

held bv the Companv for trading or as mandatoril,v required to be classified as

financial asscts at fair valuc through profit or loss frVTPL).

Financial assets at FYOCI are iaitially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any

disposal costs. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, iocluding the

foreign exchange component, are recognized in other comptehensive income,
nct of anl cffccts arising from incomc taxcs, and arc rcportcd as pan of
Rer.aluation Resen'es account in the statement of Frnancial position. V'tren the
asset is disp()sed of, the cumulative gain <>r loss previousl| recognized in the

Revaluation Resen'es account is not reclassified to profit or loss but is
reclassit-red direcdy to Retained Eamings account, excePt for those debt
securities classified as FVOCI urherein cumulative fair value gains or losses are

req'cled to profit or loss upon disposal or derecognition. As of December 31,

2022 atd 2021, the Company has no debt securities classiEed as FVOCI.

Financial asscts that arc hcld v'ithin a diffcrcnt busincss modcl othcr that
"hold to collect" or "hold to collect and sell" are categorized at FVTPL.
Funher, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash

flows are not SPPI are accounted for at FVTPL. Also, equity securities are

classified as Enancial assets at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an equiry

investment that is not held for trading as at FVOCI at initial tecognition. The
Company's financial asscts at FVTPL consists of cquity sccurities which are

held for trading purposes.

Any divide nds eamed on holding equity instruments are recognized as

Dividends in the statement of comprehensive income, when the Companv's

right to receive dividends is established; it is probable that the economic
bcocfits associatcd witlr thc dividcnd w-ill flow to the Company; and, thc

amount of the dividend can be measurcd reliably, unless the dividends clearly

represent recoven' of a pan of the cost of the investrnent.

Fitarrcial --bet at Fl 'TPL
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A tinancial asset is held fot trading if:

o it has been acquired pdncipally fot the purpose of selling it in the near tenn;

on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio ofidentified financial
instruments that the Company manages together and has evidence of a

recent actual pattem of short-term profit-taking; or,

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging insmrment
or financial lparantee.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value rvith gaios or losses

arising from changcs (mark-to-markct) in the fair value and from disp<.rsals of
these instrurnents recognized in profit or loss as Fair Value Gains (osses) on
lnvestmcnts at F'VTPL and Gain r.,n Sale of lnvestments at FVTPL,
respective\', in the period in which the\. arise. Related transacti<.rn costs are

recognized directly as expense in pro6t or loss. The fair values of these
financial assets are determined by reference to active market transactions or
using a valuation technique v'hcrc no active market exists.

Dividends eamed is rec<.rgnized as Dividends in the statement of comprehensive
income rvhen the Company's right to receive dividend is established.

The Companl can onll reclassi6' financial assets if the objective of its business

modcl for managing thosc financial asscts changcs. Accordingll*, thc Company
is required to reclassifi' financial assets: (i) frorn amortized cost to FVTPL, if the
<.rbiective of the business model has changed so that the amortized c<.rst criteria are

no longer met; and, (ii) from F\rTPI- to amortized cost, if the obiective of the
business model changes so that the amoftized cost criteria start to be met and the
characteristic of the instrument's contracrual cash flows meet the amortized cost
criteria.

A change in the obiective of the Company's business mcrdel will take effect crnly at
the beginning ofthe next reponing period following the change in the business

model.

(ii) Inpaiment of Financial Asets

At the end c,f rhe reporting period, the Companv assesses and recognizes

allou'ance for ECL on its financial assets measured at amortized cost, The
measulement of ECL involves consideration of broader range of infotmation
that is ar.ailable rvithout undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
cvcnrs, currcnt conditions, and reasonable and supponable forecass of future
ecomrmic conditions (i.e., foru'ardJooking intbrmation) that ma,v affect the
collectabiliq of the future cash flows of the financial assets.

Interest income on Frnancial assets measured at amonized cc.rst is tecognized using
the effective intercst rate method. Thc effective interest rate is the rate that exacdy
discounts estimated future cash receipts th.ough the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, t<-r the net carq.ing amount of the
financial asset.
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Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
crcdit losscs c1'cr thc expected life of the financial instruments evaluated based
on a ranfp of possible outcome.

The Oompanv recognizes lifetime ECL fcrr receivable from custome rs. The
ECL oo this asset is estimated by applyrng the simplified approach using a

provision matrix dereloped based on the Company's historical credit loss
cxpcricnce and crcdit information that arc spccific to the dcbtors, adjustcd for
general economic conditions and an assessment ofboth the current as well as

the fcrrecast direction <.rf conditions at the reporting date, including time value

of mone1. s.here appropriate. This asset is assessed for impairmeot on a

collective basis based on shared credit risk characteristics.

Thc kcr. clcments used in the calculation of ECL are as follorvs:

o Pnbabili\ of d{auh - It is an estimate of likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation over a giten time horizon, either over the next 12

months or over the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

L,ots girn d(iult - \t is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default
occurs at a given time (either over the next 12 month, or over the remaining
lifetime). It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows of
a hnancial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Company
would expect to receive, including the realization ofany collateral. It is
ptesented as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default.

Expwan at deJa / - It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation; hence, this is the amount
that the Company expects to be ou,ed at the time of default over the next 12

months or over the remaining lifetime.

The Compan.v tecognizes an impairment loss in ptofit or loss for all financial
instruments subjected to impairment assessment $/ith a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allouance account.

(iii) Demo,gnition o.f hirundal Asvts

The financial asscts (or where applicable, a part ofa financial asset or part of a

group of financial assets) are derecognized w-hen the contractual rights to
rcccivc cash flos's from thc financial instrumcnts exptc, or whcn thc ftnancial
assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to another partr'. Ifthe Companv neither transfers nor retains substantiallv all

the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Compan,v recognizes its retained intetest in the asset and an associated
liability' for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transfcrred financial asset, thc
Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also tecognizes a

collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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(b) Ftuardol Uobilitiet

F.inancial liabilities, which include Payable to Customers, Payable to Clearing House
and Accounts payable (except govemment related liabilities) presented under Other
Payables in the statement of financia.l position, are recognized when the Companv
becomes a partv to the contractual terms of the instrument, All interest-related
charges incurred on a financial liabilities, if anv, ate recognized as part of Otlers
under Costs and ()pcrating Expenscs in the statement of comprehensive income,

Financial liabilities are recognized initiallv at their fair value and subsequendv
measured at amoftizcd cost, using effective interest method fcrr those u'ith maturities
bevond one vear, less setdement payments.

Financial liabilitics arc dcrcc<lgnized from the statemcnt of financial position <.rnly

when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. Financial liabilities are also derecognized when its terms are modified and

the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial Iiability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
diffetence benveen the carrying amount of the financial liabilitv detecognized and the
considcration paid or payablc is rccognizcd in pro6t or loss.

2.6 Prcpeny and Equipment

Properw and equipment are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and

anl impairment losses.

The cost ot an asset comprises its purchase price and direcdt' attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures f<r additions, maior
improvements and renewals are capitalized, while expenditues for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Dcprcciation is computcd on the straight-line basis over the estimated usefirl lives of the

assets as follows:

Office condominium
Building improvemens
Fumiture and fixtures
Transportation and officc equipment

30 years

3 -10 years

3 -10 years

3 -10 years

An asset's carrf ing a[lount is written down immediatelv to its recoverable amouot if the
asset's carf ing amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.14).

Fulh depreciated assets are retained in accounts until thel are no longer in use and no
funher chanp;c for dcprcciation is made in respcct of thosc asscts.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property and
equipment are re'l'iewed, and adiusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

.\n item of propertl' and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses, is derecogrized upon disposal or w'hen no furure economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and thc carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in *re year the item is
derecognized.
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2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets (ptesented as part of Other Assets in the statement of financial posit.ion)
include acquired c()mputer software and trading right accounted for under the cost model.
Thc c<.rst of the asset is the xmount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
other considerations gi\.en up to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or
production. In addition, intangible assets are subject to impairment testing as d€scribed in
Notc 2.14.

Trading right, which has indeHnite usehrl life, represents the value of the exchange seat

rvhich allorvs the Companv to trade ilt the PSE. Trading right is tested annuall), for
impairment and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if an1-,

Acquircd computer softwzre are capitalized on thc basis of the costs incwred to acquire
and install the specific sofru,are. Capitalized costs ofcomputer software are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of ten ,vears as the lives of these
intangible assets are considered Ftnite. Costs associated with maintaining computer
sof-tu.are and those costs associated with research activities are recognized as expense
in pro6t or loss as incurred.

Vhen an intangible asset is disposed of the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the
difference benveen the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.

2.8 Other Assets

()ther assets, which are non-financial assets, pertain to other resources controlled by the
Companv as a result ofpast e\.ents. They are recognized in the financial statements rrhen
it is probable that thc fufluc cconomic benefits will florv to the Company and the asset has

a cost or value that can be n:easured reliably.

2.9 Ollsetting of Financial fnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the tesulting net amount, considered
as a single financial assct or financial liability, is reportcd in the statement of firancial
position when there is a legallv enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and

there is an intention ro setde on a net basis, or realize the asset and setde the liabilitv
simultaneousll,. The r[ht of set-off must be available at the end of the reporting period,
that is, it is not continSpnt on future event. It must also be enforceable in the normal
course ofbusiness, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcv;
and, must be lcgally enlorceable for both entity and all counterparties to the financial
instruments.

2,10 Prouisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized s-hen present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
cconomic rcsourccs and thcy can bc estimated reliably er.en if the timhg or amount of the
outflou. may still be uncertain. A present obligpticrn arises from the presence ofa legal or
constructive obligation thar has resulted from past etents.

- 11 -



Ptovisions are measured at the estimated expendirure tequired to settle the present
t-'bligation, based on thc nrost rcliable cvidcncc availablc at thc cnd of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated u,ith the present obligation. \Xtrere there
are a number ()f similar obligations, the likelih<.rod that an outflow will be requited in
settlement is detern.rined b1' considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time
r.alue of monev is material, Iong-term provisions are discounted to their prcsent values
using a pretax rate that leflects market assessments and the risks speciFrc to the obligation.
Thc increasc in thc provision due to passage of timc is recogoized as interest expcnsc.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reponing period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

In those cases u.here the possible outflow of economic resource as a result ofptesent
obligations is considered improbable or temote, or the atnount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no Iiability is recognized in the financial statements- Similarly,
possible inilows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the
recognition criteria ofan asset are considered contingent assets; hence, are not recognized

in the financial statcmcnts. ()n the othcr hand, an1' reimbursemcnt that the ComPanY can

be virrually certain to collect from a third parw v'ith resPect to the obligation is recognized

as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.11 Equity

Capital stock reprcsents thc nominal value of sharcs that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital represents premiums teceived on the initial issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated vith the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of anv related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves include the unrealized fair value changes on financial assets at

FVOCI and remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of applicable

taxes.

Appropriated retained eamings pertain to reserve fund tequired to be maintained by
companies engaged in the securities brokerage business in compliance with SEC

Memorandum Circular @{C) No. 16, Series of 2014.

Unappropriated retained earnings include all current and priot pedod results as disclosed
in thc profit <-,r loss scction of the state ment <-rf comprehensivc income, reduced by the

amounts of dividencls declared, and additional appropriations.

2.12 Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by refetence to the fair
valuc of considcration received or receivable by thc Company for sewices rendered,

excluding value-added tax (VAT).

-12-
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(a) identifting the contract v,ith a customer;

@) identifling the perfonr.rance obligation;
(c) determining the transaction price;
(d) allocating the ttansaction price to the performaoce obligations; and,
(e) recognizing revenue ufien/as performance obligations ate satisfied.

The Company determines u,hether a contract u'ith customer exists b1'evaluating
s'hether the folkrwing gatinu criteria are present:

(i) the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in
accordance with other customary busioess ptactices;

(ii) cach parq"5 rights regarding the goods or services to be tansferred or performed can

be identified;
(iii) the payrnent terms for the goods ot services to be transferred or performed caa be

identified;
(iv) *re contract has commercial subsance (i.e-, the risk, timing or amount of the future

cash flows is expected to change as a result of the conttact); and,
(v) collection of the consideration in exchange ofthe goods and services is probable.

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Company satisfies a petformance obligation
by transferriag control of the promised goods or services to a customer. The transfer of
control can occur over tintc or at a point in time.

A pcrfcrrmancc obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the
following criteria, in s,hich case it is satisfied over time;

(i) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Company's performance as the Company performs;
(ii) the Compan.v's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as thc asset is crcated or enhanccd; and,

(iii) the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Cornpany and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

The Company's reyenues that are wit}in the scope of PP\S 15, Rewruufmn Cotttrads

nith Cutotners, include commissions, which are recognized as actual revenues and are

charged to customers on a transaction-date basis as securities transactions occur; hence,

at a point in time.

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization ofgoods or services

or ar the date the costs and expenses are incurred. All finance costs are reported in
prcfit or loss <.rn an accrual basis. Ttre Company does not have any qualiffing asset or
associated borrovings that would require capitalization of borrowing costs,

2.13 Leases - Contpany as a Lessot

Leases wherein the Companv substantially transfers to the lessee all risks and benetits

incidental to orvnership of the Ieased item are classified as finance leases and are

presented as receivable at arl amount equal to the ComPany's net investrnent ifl the

Iease. Finance income is recognized based on the pattem reflecting a consant periodic

ratc of rcturn on thc Company's net inyestment outstanding in respect of the finance

lease.

To determine \r-hether to recognize revenue, the Company follorvs a five-step process:
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lrases s,hich do not transfer to the lessee substantialh all the risks and benet.its ol
ou'ncrship ot thc asset arc classificd as operating lcascs. [rase income from r.rpcrating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a suaight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income is recoEgrized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The rental income
is shown as Rental under the Income section ofthe shtement of comprehensive income.

2.14 Impairrnent of Non-financial Assets

The Company's property and equipment, computer software, trading right and other
non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing. Intangible assets with an indefinite
uscfrrl life or those not yct available for usc are tcstcd for impairmeot at least annually. All
other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for imPairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrling am()unt may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, asse$ are 5;rouped at the low-est levels for which
there are separatelf identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are

tcstcd f<.rr impairment either individualll' or 
", 

."tn-*rrcrating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss f<rr the amount by which the asset's or
cash-generating unit's carn'ing amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,

management estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and

dctermines the suitable intcrcst rate in ordcr to ca.lculatc the present value of those cash

flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are direcdy linked to the
Companv's latest approved budget, adlusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset

enhancements. Discount factots are determined individually for each cash-generating
unit and reflect management's assessment of respective tisk ptoEles, such as market and

asset-specifi c risk factors.

Assets are subsequentll' reassessed for indications that rn impaiment loss previously
recognized mal no longer exist. An irnpairment loss is reversed if the asset's or
cash-generating unit's recoverable amount exceeds its carrving amount.

2.15 Employee Benefrts

The Companv provides empkrvee benefits through a defined benefit plan, defined
contribution plan, and other benefits which are recognized as follows:

(,t) Put enplrynent Defned Bneft Phn

A defined benefit plan, which is currendy unfi.rnded, is a post-employmeot plan that
defines an amount of post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on ooe or mote factors such as age, years of service
and salary. The legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment
plan remains with the Company, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit
plan have been acquired. The Company's defined benefit post-employment plan
covers all regular full-time emplovees.
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The liabiliw recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined benefit
plan is thc present valuc of the defined bcncFrt <-rbligation at the end of thc
reporting pedod. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit rnethod. The present value
oi thc dcf-ined be ne tit obligation is determined by discounting dre estimated future
cash outflou.s for expected benefit paymens using a discount rate derived from
the iflterest rates of a zero coupon government bonds [using the reference rates
publishcd br. Bloombcrg using its valuation technol<.rgy-, Bloombcrg Valuatic-rn

@VAL), that are denominated in the currency in which the beneEts will be paid
and that have tenns to maurity approxirnating to the terms of the related
post-emplovment liability. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based on
market observations from contributed sources.

Rcmcasurcmcots, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, are reflected immediately in the
statement of financial position with a chatge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in w-hich they arise. Net interest is calculated
bi appl,ving the discount rate at the beginring of the period, taking account of any
changes in the net defined benefit liabiliw or asset during the period as a result of
contributions and bcncfit pa1'mcnts. Nct intcrcst is reported as pan of Othcrs
under Costs and Operating Expenses in the statement of comprchensive income.

Past sen ice c<.rsts ar€ recognized immediate\' in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment and curtailment.

(lr) Posl-euployrnnt DeJined Contribtion Plan

A defined cofltibuti()n plan is a post-employment plan under which the Companv
pays fixed conributions into an independent entity such as the Social Security
S),stem. The Company has no legal or constructive obligatioos to pay funher
conributions after patment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized
in rcspect ofdefined contribution plans are cxpcnscd as they fall duc. Liabilities r.rr
assets may be recognized if underpavment or prepavment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short-term
nature.

O Bants Phnt

2.16 fncome Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of current tax and defeffed ta\
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directlr in equitv, if any.

Current tax assets or current tax liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reponing pedod, that are uncollected ot
unpaid at thc end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the t-iscal periods to which thev relate, based on the taxable profit for
thc lcar. ,\ll changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a cornponent of
Ill\ c\pcnse in profit or loss.

The Companv recognizes a liability and an expense fbr bonuses. The Companv
recr>gnizes a provision where it is contractuallv obliged to pay the benefits, or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Defered tax is accounted for using the liabiliq' method on temporary differences at
the end of the repr-rrting peri<.rd between t}re tax base <.rf assets and liabilities and their
carning amounts for financial reporting purposes. flnder the liability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax iiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred rax ass€ts are recognized for all deductible temporarl differences
and the carryibrvard oi unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit u,ill be ar.ailable against u,hich the deductible temporary
cliffcrcnccs can bc utilizcd. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are rcassesscd at the end nf
each reporting pericd and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
furure taxable pnrfit s,ill be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are

expected to apph' in the period s,hen the asset is realized or the liabiliw is settled provided
such tax ratcs have bccn cnactcd <-rr substantiveh, cnactcd at thc cnd of thc rcporting
period. The carfl,iflg amount of deferred tax asse6 is revierved at the end ofeach
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable

profit v'ill be available to allow all or part of the defered tax asset to be util.ized.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities teflects the tax
consequences that would foll<.rrv from the mannel in vhich the Cr.rmpany expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or setde the catrving amount ofits assets and

liabilities.

N[ost changes in deferred tar assets or deferred tax liabilities are recognized as a

component of tax expense in profit or loss, excePt to the extent that it relates to items
rccognizcd in othcr cc,mprchensivc income or direcdy in cquity. In this case, the tax is

also recognized in other comprehensive ilcome or direcdy in equitv, respectivelv.

Deferred tax assets and defcrred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legallv
enforceable right to set off current tali assets against current mx liabilities and the deferred

taxes relate to the same taxation authorit)'.

2.17 Related Parq/ Tnnsactions and Relationships

Related pafq. transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the

Companv and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are c<-rnsidered to be telated if one party has the ability to control the other parn'
or exercise significant influence over the other paft,v in making financial and operating
decisions. These panies include: (a) individuals owning, direcdy or indirecdy through one

or m<.rre intermediaries, control ot are controlled by, ot under common control with the

Companv; and, ft) individuals owning, direcdy or indirecd,v, an interest in the votiflg
power oFthe Companl'that gives them significant influence over the ComPanl'and close

membe rs of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related partl relationship, attention is directed to the

substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.18 Events After the End of the RePoning Period

,\rrv post-year-end event that ptovides additional information about the Company's
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adiusting event) is reflected in the

financial statements. Post-year-end events that are n<.rt adiusting events, if any, are

disclosed n,hen material to rhe financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Companv's financial statements in accordance with PFRS tequires
management to make iudgments and estirnates that affect the amounts reported in the
finaocial statemcnts aod related notes. Judgments and estimates are continuall), evaluated
and are based on historical expeJience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual tesults may
ultimatcly diffcr from these cstimatcs.

3.1 Critical Management ludgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Companv's accounting policies, management has made the
iolkrrving judgmenrs, apart from those invoh'ing estimation, which har-e the most
significant effccr on thc amounts rcc<-rgnizcd in thc hnancial statcmcnts:

k, D$enrinatiott oJ Tinitg oJ Sati$bction oJ Pe(bnnance Obligations

The Companl determines that its revenue from commissions, which are actual
revenues and are charged to customers on a transaction-date basis as securities
transaction occur, shall bc rccognized at a point in rimc.

The related perf<rrmance obligation is generallv satis6ed when the contractually
agleed tasks are rendered. The Company determines that control is already
transferred upon issuance of the buy and/or sell confirmation to the customer.

(b) Detentinatiott oJ EA oa Receitable frn Crctonen

The Company uses simplified approach, which is based on the Company's hist<.rrical
obsen'ed default rates, to calculate ECL for receivable from customers. The
provision rates are based on dals past due (age buckets). Management will reguladv
assess (i.e., on an annual basis) to consider the historical credit loss experience vrith
for"r'ardJooking intbrmation (i.e., forecast economic conditions). Details about the
ECL on the Companv's receivable from customers are disclosed in Note 20.1.

k) Erulwlon of Bttsinus Madel Applied tu MonagingFiraxcial Inshtn/e r

The Companv manages its financid assets based on a business model that maintains
adequate level of t'inancial assets to match its expected cash outflows, \r,hile
maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for trading activities consistent
with its risk appetite.

The C<-rmpany developed business models, rvhich re0ect how it manages its portfoli<i
ot tinancial instruments. The Company's business models need not be assessed at
entin' level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial
instmments (i.e., gr<-rup of financial instruments that are managed together by the
Company) and not on an instrument-by instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention
or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).

ln determining the classification of a financial instrument, the Companv evaluates in
s'hich business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments
bclong tc,, taking into considcradon thc obicctivcs of each busincss model
established bv the Company (e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct
matching to a specific liabiliq) as th()se relate t() the C()mpanv's trading and
investment strategies.
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The (iompanv assesses rvhether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise

on specified dates to cash tlou's that are SPPI on the principal outstanding, with
interest representing time value ofmonet and credit risk associated v-ith the
principal amount outstanding. The assessment as to vhether the cash flows meet
the test is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any
other contracrual term that changes the timing ot amount of cash flows (unless it is
a variable interest rate that repres€nts time value ofmoney and credit risk) does not
meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases v'here the relationship between th€
passage of time and the interest rate of the financial instrument may be imperfect,
known as modified time value of money, the Company assesses the modified time
value of money feature to determine whcther the financial instrument meets the
SPPI criterion. The objective of the assessment is to determine how different the
undiscounted contactual cash florvs could be fr<.rm the undiscounted cash flows that
s'ould arise if the time value of money element w'as not modified (the benchmark
cash flows). Ifthe resulting difference is significant, the SPPI criterion is not met.
In vieu' of this, the Compan)' considers the effect of the modified time value of
mono' clcn.rcnt in caclr rcporting pcrit.rd and ctrnrulativelt' over the life of the
t-inancial ins trument-

k) Rccogttiliotr oJ-Pmr*ioru and Contingerciu

Judgment is exercised bv management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencics. Policics on rccognition and disclosure of provision and contingcncies
are discussed in Note 2.10 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 19.

f1 Ditnclion Belwutt Operating and Finance l-zatesfor Co racts vbm tbe Conpanl is the lt*or

The Cr.rmpany has entered into lease agrcements for certain of6ce spaces. Critical
judg'mcnt was exerciscd by management to d.istinguish &e lease agreemeflt as either
an operating or a finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
risk and reu,ards of ou'nership of the propern c()\'ered bv the agreement. Failure t<r

make thc right iudgment rvill result in either overstatement or understatement of
assets and habilities,

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation of Uncertainty

The follorving are the kel assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncenainty at the end of the reponing period, that have a siglificant risk of
causing a materia.l adiustment to the carn ing amounts of assets and liabilities u'ithin rhe

next reporting peritrd:

k, Ettitnation of Alkvarafor EA

The measurement ofthe allowance for ECL on financial assets at amonized cost is
an area that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future economic
conditions and credit behavir.rr (e.g., likelihood of the issuer defaulting and the
rcsultinc losscs). Explanation ofthe inputs, assumptions and cstimation uscd in
measuring ECL is further deailed in Note 20. l.

(rl) Te$ng tbe Catb Flow Charadcristict of Phancial Assxs and Co iruhg Evalution oJ tbe

Brcinat ltlodel
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(l)) Detemzinatiot of Foir lz'alue MeasanzentJbr Financial Asset a, FVTPL and FVOCI

The Company carries ceftain financial assets at fair value, which requires the
extensive use ofaccounting estirnates and judgment. In cases when active market
quotes are not available, fair ralue is determined bv reference to the curreot market
value of another instrument that is substantially the same, r.rr is calculated based on
the expected cash flos's of the undedying net base of the instrument. The amount
of changes in fair valuc would differ if the C<.rmpanv utilizcd different valuation
nethods and assunptions. Anv change in fair value of these financial assets would
affect profit or krss and ()ther c()mprehensive incorne,

The carrving values of the Company's investments at FVP|L and FVOCI and the
amounts of fair value changes recognized during the y,ears on those assets are
disclosed in Notc 5.

(c) E*ination oJ Us$rl Lites of Pnpa! awt Eqtipnmt a Conp er Sofwan

The Company estimates the usefr,rl Lives of propery and equipment and computer
software based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimatcd uscfi.rl lir-cs of propcry* and cquipment and computer softuarc
are reyiew'ed periodically and are updated if erip€ctations differ from previous
estimates due to phvsical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
Iegal or other limits on the use of the assets. The carrying amounts of property and
equipment and computer soft'*'are are presented in Notes 8 and 9, respectiyely.
Based on rnanagement's assessment as at December 31 ,2022 atd 2021, there is no
changc in thc cstimated usefi:l lives of propeft\. and cquipmcnt and computer
sot-ntare during th(,sc rears. Actual results, h<.ru,ever, mav vary due to changes in
estimates br<>ught about bv changes in factors mentioned above.

((t) Dxemination of Rtaliiable .4nomt o-f Defemd Ta: .,7ssets

The Company rcvicw's its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrving amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit vill be ar.ailable t() allow all (x part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. As at Deccmber 31,2022 and,2021, except for the deferred tax asset related
to the fair 1,alue movement of the Company's financial assets at FVOCI, the
Company did not recognize all other deferred tax assets as the Company does not
e\pect to have sufFrcient taxable pro6t in the future. The carying amount of
unrecognized deferred tax assets as at December 31,2022 ar,d 2027 are disclosed in
Note I (r-

(() IrrlPaitm€rrt of Non-lindflcidl A$etr

In assessing impairmcnt, managcmcnt cstimatcs thc rccovcrablc am<-runt crf cach
asset or a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an
interest rate to calculate the present value ofthose cash 0ows. Esrimation
uncertaint) relatcs to assumptions ab<.rut future operating results and the
determination ofa suitable discount rate (see Note 2.14). Though management
believes that the assumptioos used in the estimatioa of fait values reflected in the
Frnancial statcmcnts are appropriatc aod rcasonable, significant changes in those
assumptions may materially affect the assessment ofrecoverable values and any
resulting irnpairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations.
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'Ihe Companv did not recognize any impairment losses on its non-financial assets in
2022 and 20?1 .

(/) Valnatior of Plst-erlPlq,nleflt Beneft Obliganon

The determination of the Company's obLigation and cost of post-emplovment
defined benefit is dependent on the selection of cerain assumptions used by
actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others,
discount rates and expected salary increase rate. A significant change in any ofthese
actuarial assurnptir>ns mav generally affect the recognized expense, other
comprehensivc income or losses and the car5.ing amount of the post-employment
benefit obligation in the next reporting period.

The amounts of post-emplovment benefit obligption and expense and an analysis of
the movemenrs in the estimated present value of post-employment benefig as well as

the significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation are prcsented in
Note 15.2.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

2022 2021

Cash on hand
Cash in banks
Short-term placements

P 8,000
74,275,106
23.809.984

5,000
13,330,829
29.791.366

P 18J93.090 P 43JZi,9)

Cash in banks gencrallt'carn intercst bascd on dailv bank deposit ratcs. Short-term
placements are made for van'ing periods averaging 90 davs and earn interest of 0.637,r
per annurn in 2022 and 2l)21. Interest income earned on cash in banks and short-term
placements amounted to P0.2 million and P0.l million n 2022 and 2021, respectively, and
is recognized as part of Others under Income section of the satements of comprehensive
income (see Note l4). Accrued interest receivable on shon-term placements amounted to
P39,196 and P3,306 as at Dccember 31,2022 md 2021, respcctively, and is recognized as

part of Other receivables under Other Assets in the statements of financiai position
(see Note 9).

The Companv mainains shon-term placemens in a special resewe bank account to
compll's.ith Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2, Csslom€r Pmtedion Resmw and
Custodl of Suuritia, amounting to P7.0 million both as of December 31, 2022 ar:d 2021.
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5.1 Financial Assets at FWPL

'fhis account consists of e<1uitl securities listed in PSF,. The fair value of the listed equity
securities amounted to P1.6 million and P4.7 million as at December 31 ,2022 atd,2027,
respectiveh..

All amounts presented have been determined direcdy by reference to published prices
quoted in an active market-

The Company recognized net decrease in fait values of financial assets at FVT?L
anrounting to P0.6 million and net increase P7.5 milhon in 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which is presented as Fair Value Gahs (-osses) on Inyestments at FVTPL - net under the
Income section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Dividends eamed and receiye d in 2022 aad, 2021 is presented as part of Dividends under
the Income section of the statements of comprehensive income.

The Companv recognized net gain on sale <.rf financial assets at FVTPL amounting to
P2.9 miilion in 2022 tnd P24.1 milhon in 2021, which is presented as Gain on Sale of
lnvestments at FVTPL - ner under the Income section of the statements of
cc,mprehensive inc<-rme.

5.2 Financial Assets at FVOCf

The reconciliation of the carrving amounts of investments in PSE shares classit'ied as
financial assets at FVOCI as at December 31 is as follorvs:

2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year P 51,600,000 P 36,936,000
Uorealized fair value gains (osses) ( 13.680.000) 14.664.000

Balance at eod of vear P :17J2m00 P__lf-600^000

On February 17 , 2022, PSE approved the declaration of regulat and special cash dividends
amounring to P4.00 per share and P7.00 per share, respectively, in favor of stockholders
on tecotd as at March 9,2022 and were pa:d on Api|4,2022.

\\Trile on Februan 24, 2()21, PSE approved the declaration of regular and special cash
dir.idends amounting to P3.?7 per share and P4.23 per share, respectirrlv, in falor of
stockholders on record as at Nlarch 22,2027 ar..d, were paid on April 15,2021.

The Company recorded the related dividends amounting to P2.6 million and P1.9 miilion
in 2022 ar,d 2021, respectively, from its invesunents in PSE shates as part of Dividends
under the Income section of the statements of comprehensive income.

As at December 31,2022and 2021, the Company holds 2,(),000 PSE shares.

5. INIIESTMENTS
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RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS

Tlis account is broken dorvn as follows;

2021

Cash acc<>unts:

trlore than 250'ln
Benveen 200'llo and 250'Yo

Bet$,een 1009/o and 200'%'

kss than lOfflo
Unsecuted acc<.runts

P

Debit
Balance

Security
Valuation

Long Position
Debit

Balance

Securiry
Va.luation

I-ong Position

P 85,065,733
44,671

t7,490
23

788,045 P
609,174

8,052
7.4s1

74,745,276 P
1,453,095

5,717

2,197 ,648
17,945

I0,096
196

20.734
7,406,728 76,2O4,0E2 2,246,019 85,127,923

,{llcrwaocc for
impairment loss

P Ll8erc6 [___]16A4J82 L 2225J_64 Lisj2JSn

Receivable from customers are usually due within tfuee days and do not bear any
interest. All receivable from customers ate subiect to credit risk exposwe. However, the
Company does not identi6, specific concentrations ofcredit risk with regatd to due from
customers as the amounts recognized resemble a large number ofreceivables from
various customers.

,\ll of the Companv's receivable from customers have been assessed for impairment using
the ECL nrethodolog,v. ln 2022, the Companv recognized additional impairment losses
amoundng t() P4,367, while in 2021, the Company recognized reversal of impairment
losses amounting to P13,642, which are recorded as part of Other Costs and Operating
Expenses in the 2022 statement of comprehensive income and Miscellaneous under Other
Income in the 2021 satement of comprehensive income (see Note 14).

The details of the Company's allowance for impairment loss are shown below.

Balance at beginning ofvear
Additional impairmcnt (rcversal)

during the year

Balance at end of vear

2022

P 20,255

4.367

P________ZLS?2

2021

P 33,897

( 13.642\

P____20255

7. TRADING RIGHT

The carrvins r.alue of PSE trading right amounted to P0.9 million as at Dece mber 31,2022
and 2027.

As required under PSE mles, the Companv's trading right is pledged at its full value to the
PSE to secure the pavment of all debts to other membels of the PSE arising from, or in
conncction with, the prcscnt or future mcmber's contr.acts,

(u.622)-(20.2ss)
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In accorclance rvith PAS 38,Intargibh Axh, intangible asset with indefinite useful life
n ill not bc amc,rrizcd bur shall bc rcvicu'cd annualll' to dctcrminc whcthcr cvcnts and
circumstances continue tt.r support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset. The
C<-rmpany tests the asset f<rr impairment annually bv comparing its carrying amount u/ith
its recoverable amount, and recognizing any excess of the carrl.ing amount over the
recoverable amount as an impairment loss.

The Companv has no intention to sell the rading right in the futue as it intends to
continue to operate as a stock brokerage entity. The last transacted price for the trading
right amounted to P8.5 million as reported on December 14,2011 by the PSE. As such,
no allow-ance for impairment was recorded for both years.

8. PROPERTYANDEQUIPMENT

The gnrss carrr,'ing am(runts and accumulated depreciation of propert,' and equipment at
the beginning and end of 2022 and 2021 are shou-n below.

Condohininm
Buildin8

Impo-.m.nB .nd Fixur.. Eouipmcnr

Dcmb.r ll.2tr22

Ac@uhkd d.?Ri.ri6

,\aMuhl.d d.pcci.rin

Aaullahl d.prciarion

P r{.211.265
( ______9.!4L0.[]

E:t169.5!{

P 2.(8.(x,7
( z(lrljr,T)

P 3r('.i05
( srlr.yr5)

t:

P 1,335,112
( t-6il.4tt,

P_______U,24

P 21,i22,.A9
( ____l@*-614

[_____452]J17

Tohl

t-L!!r.o!2

Torrl

P t1.211.265

i _______9.j!t Et5)
P a@l,oc,
( z6o3.m? )

P-

! 3,665p78

P______).fi2b2

P 21,t51,855
( _-_toJ!..r6)

B-

P-

P-P-

P 53t?2ft P

) (_________!0t^o,I ) ( _____it&I9l

P t4lll,265
( _______!.!9rd5!)

P L(f,'1txlt
(______zGr3.00z)

P 40,505
( 370 s05)

P t 576,687
( 1461 940J

P_ 114:tE

P 2t263,444
( ------1531Lii20)

E-__jl]1.9i4

A reconciliation of the carrl,ing amounts at the begiffring md end of 2022 and 2021 of
propertl and equipment is shown below.

Condomnium xnd fixrur.r Eouipm r

Blbre r.lrsn I,z2a

P J.3{.r.4-rrl O 
.

r {:tr?trr . .

a.!ne r J.n6i 1.zr2l

rrd7l8
88,39(l

5J3r,944
88J90

P:r.l6r^654 I- P- P NAJ P 4rtlt2

i r?116) (:) ( - ) (__________6tt56) ( i18642)

P L.!I2!2 !t l'2Er!92

Depreciation charges in Z0?2 aod 2021 is presented as pan of Depreciation and
,\mortization account in dre statements of comprehensive income.
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The Companv's fully depreciated assets amounting to P6.9 million as at December 31,
2022 and ?021, are still bcing used in thc operations.

OTHER ASSETS

This account crrnsists of:

N<..,te 2022 lrrl I

Cleadng and trade guarantl
tund (CTGF)

Tax credits
Other receivables
Intangible asses - net
Prepayments
Input VAT
Othcrs

Balance at beginning ofyear, net of
accumulated anortization

Amortization

P 7,569,436
557,543
514,368
161,086
542,549

2,2?i
32.727

P 246,979
( 85.89-3)

I ,230,852
459,214
332,774
246,979
260,108

103.67 3

P 332,872
r 85-893)

P

4

E __33D9il P_____2_63i54A

Intangible assets pertain to computer software and PSE tradex system acquired by the
Company. A reconciliation of the catrying amounts at the beginni ng and end of 2022 ar,d
2021 of intengible asscts is shou,n bclow.

2022 2llll

Balance at end of l'ear, net of
accumulated amortization P_16L0&6 L24h9t9

Amortization charges on intangible assets in 2022 and 2021 is presented as part of
Depreciation and Amonization account in the statements of comprehensive income.

OnJulv 25,2018, Securities Clearing Corporatioo of the Philippines (SCCP) issued Memo
No. 01-0718, Rctum of Conlribution to tbe Cleaing and Tmde Gwmrg Fard, informing brokers
of thc amcndmcnts to SCCP Rule 5-2, Rettn ofReqtintt Contribrtior, and Opcrating
Prcrcedure 4.3.1.3, Dirctire on Nor-R{rudabili4' af tlte Cleaing Menber's Contrib ion4 mal<ng
the clearing members conrributions to the CTGF retundable to clearing members upon
cessation of their business and/or termination of their me mbership with SCCP provided
that all liabilities of such clearing member owing to the SCCP at the time of termination,
whether actual or contiogent, shall have been satisfied or paid in full. These amendments
took effect on August 1, 2018 and appLicable to current and active PSE trading
participants/clearing members of the SCCP.
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The breakdou,n of other assets as to their mahdties is presented below.

20u.

Ooe year and belo.x,
Beyond one year

10. PAYABT F TO CUSTOMERS

This account is broken down as follows:

21t21

P 7,649,470
7.730.522

P 1,155,709
1.477 .837

P____3.379"9il P__2-63lt40

1

Credit
Security

Valuation Credit
Securin-

Valuation
Balance Long Position Balence I-ong Position

\\'ith m<.rnev balance
\\'ithout rnoncv balance

P 13,163,433 p 476,429,067 p 14,101,154 p 4'/6,735,127
1.480.995.488 1 .7 69 .67 0993

p 13J6t411 pt%] 42A,555p__il4^107.lu p22&_gffil2i

Payable to customers are noninterest-bearing and are normally setded within three dals
after trading date.

Pavable to customers as at December 31 ,2022 and 2021 will mature w.ithin one year ftom
the end ofeach reporting period.

17. OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Notes 2022 2

Post-emplovment defi ned
benefit obligation

Accounts payable
Dealer deposits
Others

15.2
18.1

P P3,616,834
3,345,274

s30,000
127,472

3,919,078
6,329,441

682,190
303.779

P-----7-6131E0 P_1121r188

The breakdown of other payables as to their maturities is presented below.

2022 202t

One vear and belos' P 3,996,746 P 7,315,410

3,616,834 3.919.078Beyond one vear

E____7-6tL580 P____L1A4A88
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12, EQUITY

12.1 Capital Stock

The Company has 800,C)00 shares ofauthorized capital stock at P100 par value per share.
As of December 3 7 , 2022 ar,d, 2021 , 567,086 shares out of the total authorized shares are
issued and outstanding which amounted to P56.7 million.

As at December 31,2022 atd 2021, the Company has ten stockholders owning 100 or
more shares each of the Company's capital stock.

12.2 Revaluation Resewes

The components and reconciliation of items of other comprehensive income presented in
the statements of chanues in equity at their aggreg'ate amounts under Revaluation Reserves
account are shown belorv.

Finrncial
Defin.d B€nefit

N0r(s Total

llalaace as at.laouaq 1,2022
Uorcalized fair valuc loss oo

inancial as-sets ar tar'()Cl
Acruari.l gains on

post-emploltneot detined
bencfit <rbligati<.rn

Tax incomc
Other compreheosive

income afrer sx

Balance as ar December 31,2022

Balancc as atJanuen' 1, 2021
Llnrca-tiz.d fair 1?luc gains oo

inencial assets at FV()CI
Actuzrial gaio-s on

post-emplotrnent dcfioed
lxnc6t obligati<lr

Trx eipense
Orhcr comprchcnsivc

income after tax

P 8.s46-800 (P 1.714.274

( 13,6E0,000 )

p 6.a32.528

( 13,680,000 )4.2

15.2

16

5.2

.-1:!r.1 lrrr
421 ,1 ..5 421,115

3-420-0(Jt)

.r21.--5 ( 9.838.22s)

(L- 1a2AY) (P rL0ll5-692)

(P 2_513.704) (P 4.718.504)

14,66.1,00iJ

8a9332

(E _ LZLL200)

( P 2-144_800 )

1.1,66,{,000

t5.2
l6

a59.432
a r)12 4txt

l0.691.6rru .q49..1-1: I1.55t -032

llalancc xs rt Deccmbcr -11, 2021 P 814 14 (P_____i-1142J2) P_______6^832128

12.3 Capital Management Policies and Procedures

The Cclmpanr.'s capital management objectives are t<l ensure the Companr"s abiliry to
condnuc as a going conccrn and to provide adequate return to owners.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carwing amount of its equity less cash
as prcsentcd on the statements of financial position. Howeve! since the Company has no
existing significant borrowings, it has not maintained a structured capital management
polic)'.

( ))'(
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12,4 Minimum Capital Requirement

On Norrmber 11,2004, dre SEC issued MCNo. 76, Afuption of the Nsk-Barcd C@ital
-AdeErag kqtirment/ Ratio-lbr Brukcn Dealen, which provides f<rr the guidelines on the
adoption in the Philippines of the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) Framework for
all registered brokers in accordance with the SRC.

Thcsc guidelincs cover the folloving risks:

ldt positi()n on markcr risk;

(b) credit risks such as counterparty, setdemenq large exposure and margin financing
risks; and,

/,) operational risk.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of RBCA ratio and Net Liquid Capital (NLC).
RBCA requirement is the minimum level of capital that has to be maintained bv firms
which are liccnsed, or sccuring a brokcr dcaler licensc, taking into consideration the firm
size, complexi6'and business risk. Such risks that are considered in determining the
capital requirement include, among others, Operational, P<-rsition and Credit Risk
(vhich include counterpart).., large exposure, underwriting, and margin financing risks).
RBCA ratio is the quotient of the NLC and the sum of the requirements for operation
risk, credit risk and position or market risk.

N LC, on the other hand, rcpresents the equitv eligible for NLC adjusted for non-allor*-able
current and n()n-current assets as described under the circular,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

L nder rhe guidelines ser our br- the SEC, all registered btokers dealers should maintain the
tollowing RBCA and NLC requirements:

(a) RBCA Rdo Rquinnent

Evcry broker dealcr shall ensure that its RBCA ratio is greater than or equal to 1:1.
As at December 31,2022 atd,2021, the Company is in compliance with minimum
capital requirement set ()ut b)' the RBCA frames'ork. The Company's RBCA rati<r
is 4.4:1 and 3.8: I as at December 31,2022 and 2021, respectively.

(b) NLC fuqainnnr

Even broker dealer shall, at all times, have and maintain NLC of at least
P5.0 millir.,n or 5(% of the aggregate indebtedness, whichever is highcr. However, a
broker dealer rvho deals only with proprietary shares who does not keep the shares
under its custody shall maintain NLC of P2.5 miltion or 2.5ok of the aggregate
indebtedness, whichever is higher.

No broker dealer shall permit its aggregate indebtedness to exceed 2,000ou, of its NLC.
The Ctrmpany's NLC is P21.4 milli <>n and,P21.2 mi.llion as atDecember 31,2022
and 2021, respectiveh,, which is more than 57o of the Company's aggregate
indebtedness.
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On Ma1' 28, 2009, the SEC approved PSE's Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants u'hich pr<.rvidcs among others the f<.rllowing provisi<.rns:

(.1) Trading participants sh()uld have a minimum unirnpaired paid-up capital
(dehned as the trading panicipant's total paid up capital less any deficiency in the
retained earnings account) of P20.0 million effective December 31, 2009, proyided
further that effective December 31,2010 and onwards, the minimum unimpaited
paid up capital shall bc P30.0 million; and,

(A each trading pafticipant shall pledge its trading right to the extent of its fi.rll value to
secure the payment of all ofdebts and claims due to the trading panicipant, the
govemment, PSE and to other trading participants ofthe PSE and to the SCCP.

As at December 31,2022 and 2021, the Company is in compliance with PSE's Rules
(ioverning Trading fughts and Trading Participants.

12.5 Retained Eamings Appropria tion

Rule 49.1(B/, IUsen,c Fund aJ SEC ll[C Na 16, requires that even'broker dealer shall
annually appropriatc a certain minimum pcrccntagc of its audited profit aftcr tax and
uansttr the same to Appropriated Reained Eamings account in the statements of
financial position. Appropriation shallbe 30ok,2U/o and 10%o of pro6t after tax for
broker dealers with unimpaired paid up capital of betiveen P10.0 milliori to P30.0 million,
betr,,'een P30.0 million and P50.0 million and above P50.0 million, respectivelv, which shall
be presented as part of Cash and Cash Equivalents in the statements of financial position.

There has been no additional appropriation in 2022 and ?027 since the Company's
appropriated retained earnings amounting to P13.4 rnillion is still in excess of the required
appropriation.

13. COST OF SERVICES

T}re details ol cost of sen'iccs lre sh<-rs'n belot'

Note 2022 2t )21

Professional fees

Salaries and emplovee benefits
Stock exchange fees and dues

P 2,787 ,683
1,691,688

758,434

P 13,007 ,264
339,932
255.843

15.1

14. OTIIER INCOME AND EXPENSES

These acc()unts are composed of the following:

Notes

Othcr income:
Int€rest
Miscellane<-rus

P___52t7-805 P 8603-039

2022 2r)l I

P 208,s21
98.810

123,954
28.360

4

6

P

P-----rl07JU P 1i2]14



Other expenses:
Deficiency taxes
Ta-re s and licenses
Interest expense
Supplies
Fucl and lubricants
Insurance
Representation

and entertainment
Nfiscellaneous

Salaries and wages

Staff bcncfits
Social securiB' costs
Post-emplolment benefi ts

Other allowances

Operating expenses
Cost of sen'ices

Notes

15.2

15.2

13

2022 2021

P 878,133
262,t57
199,481
99,380
62,843
38,463

25,346
396.298

238,283
176,189
211,929
96,283
43,916

P

392,467
405.559

P_ 1J62J01 P 1.565226

SAI-ARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

15.1 Salxiee end Employee Benefits

Expenses recognized for salaries and emplovee benefits are presented below.

Notc 2022 2021

6

15

P 4,475,770
497 ,7 55
289,658
237,850
768,9s2

4,681 ,359
679,086
267 ,383
254,107
509.691

P

P----5-669J25 P-----6391Jr%

The amounts of salaries and employee benefits are allocated as follorvs:

Note ZOZZ 2tJ2'l

P 3,978,236
1.691.689

6,057,694
339.932

P

P____5-669-925 P_____5i91-b24

15.2 Post-employment Benefrt ObUgation

The Cornpany determines the amount of post-employmeot benefit obligation based on
Republic Act (R.A.) No. 7641,The Retinntmt PE ltu. Acn:ori valuations ate made
regularlv to update the retirement benefit costs and the amount of contributions. All
amounts presented in the succeeding pages are based on the actuarial valuation report
obtained from an independent actuary. Post-employment benefit obligation, shown as

part of Other Pavables account in the statements of financial position, amounted to
P3-6 rnillion and P3.9 million as at December 31, 2022 aod 2021, respectively
(scc Note 11).

-29-
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Ttre movements in the present rzlue of post-employment defined benefit obligation are as

follorr,'s:

2021

Balance at beginning of year
Benefits paid
Current service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurements -

Actuarial losse s Qpins) arising from:
Change in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Rqorte(t il Proft or lort:
Curtent service cost
Interest cost

Rqorted h other conPftbeflrive

ixcome or lass -
Actuarial losses @ains)

arising frr-rm:

Change in financial
assumptions

Experience adjustrnents

Notes 20zz

P 3,979,078 P
317,800) (
237 ,850
799,487

757,772) (
335,397

4,s33,041
185,427)
254,107
116,789

938,577)
79 1,15

(

Balance at end of vear P _L616.E:t4 P_____3-919-078

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income or loss in respect of the post-emplo,.rnent defined benefit obiigation are presented
below.

2021

't5.7

14
P 237,850

199,481 1i6 789

L4i7-3i1 P _4t0t8%

(P

P 254,',t01

7s7,172) (P
335,397

938,577)
79.145

12.2 (D , MJE\ G------i59r132)

The amount of current seryice cost is presented as part ofSalaries and Emplovee Benefits
account in the staterneots of comprehensive income (see Note 15.1). The amount of
interest cost related to the pxrst-emplo]..ment dehned benefit obligation is presented as

Interest expense under Others account of Costs and Operating Expenses section of the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 14).

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income or loss were included within item
that s'ill not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

As at December 31,2022 aod 20?1, the Company has not set up fund assets for its
retirement plan.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit pavments from the plao amounted
to P3.6 million and P3.9 rnillion with maturig'of more than Flve years to ten yeals, as at
December 31 , 2022 znd 2021 , respectively.

2022
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In determining the post-emplot'ment defined benefit obligation, the following actuarial
assumptions u'crc uscd:

202? 2021

Discount rates
Expected salan, increase rate

7 .ZZYI
5.00Yo

5.090k
5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality expedence are based on published statistics and
mortaliry tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring at the age
of 60 is 22.1 1.cars.

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the defined benefit obligation as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Impact on Post-emplovment

lnctease il) Assumo.ion Decrease in Assumption

Deccmb.r 31, 2022

Selan, increase ratc
100 bps
100 bps

Decreased bv 7.4%
lncrcased by 8.570

Increased by 8.4%
Decreased by 7,670

Decreased by 8.8'7"
Incrcascd bv 10.0%,

IDcreased b] 1().101,

Dccteascd br' 8.9%

The sensitivitv analvsis has bccn dctcrmincd bascd on reasonably possible changes ofthe
respective assumptions occurring at the end ofeach reporting period, while holding atl
other assumptions constant.

The sensitiviw analysis stated above may nor be lepresentative of the actual change in the
post-employment defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
u'ould occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivi6' analvsis, the present value of the
post-cmploymcnt defincd benefit obligation has been calculated using thc projected unit
credit method at rhe end ot each reporting period, s.hich is the same as that applied in
calculating the deFrned post-employment defined benefit obligation recognized in the
statements of financial position.

There s'as no change in the methods and assumptions used in pteparing the sensitivity
analysis from prior years.

D.cfmber 31,2021
Discounr rxt(
Salart incrcase mtc'

l0()bps
100 bps

Change in
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76. TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in pro6t or loss aod other comprehensive
income or krss f<rr the lears ended Decernber 31 are as follows:

2022 2021

Reported h pmfit or lost:

Current tax expense:
Minimum corporate income ta:i

(IVICIT) at 1%
Final tax at 20ol'
Effect of the change

ln mcomc ta)( rate

Tax on pretax (oss) income * 25ok
Adjustment for incomc subjccted

to krwcr tax tatcs
Tax effects of:

Unrecognized deferred tax assets
Non-taxable inc<-rme

Non-deductible expenses
Effect of the change in income tax rate

1 ar expense

(P 798,U2) P 2,134,341

P 49,s92
34,754

p 205,379
24,791

( 43.583)

P r8ff87P 8rt"l46

Rtponed in otlter nuprcbentiu ilcoze or lots:
Deferred tax expense (income) relating

to fair valuc changcs on Enancial
ASSCTS At FVOCI

Effect of the change in income tax rate
(P 3,420,000) P 3,666,000

306-400

(P :L420,000) P Ul2A0!

Thc recr.rnciliation of tax on preu-x income computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense follows:

( 8,688) (

1,386,2s3
714,560)
219,583

6,198)

( 1,401,85s)
( s60,049)

63,925
( 43.s83)

(

P _E4,i146 P________1&6187
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'fhe Companv did not recognize deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021

rclating to nct opcrating Ioss carrl-over (N()LC()), NICIT and othcr tcmporan
difterences reported in profit or loss at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying am(,unts fot financial rep<-rrting putposes.

Management does not expect the Company to have sufficient taxable profit against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

As ofDeccmber 31, thc breakdovn of unrccognized dcferred tax assets follow-s:

N()t_c()
Post-emplovmcnt dctined

bcncEr obligrion
MCIT
Provision tirt crcdit Lxscs
Lhrczlizcrl fiir valtrc

loss G.ains) on FVTPI-

OtLn nnPftl)uti\ in.oDt! ot h$ -
R)st-cmplol mcot diitincd

bcacfit obligation

Tax Bnse Tdx Effect Trx Tax lift,ict

P 5,742,43 P 1,435,600 P 7,007,888 P 1,151,972

581,085
429,304

6,1s6

2,204,806
462,498
20,255

5s1fr2
462A98

5,064

634,251
2,6t0,109

( 1-s3o.146) ( 382.537)
8.165.301 2,388.199

158.56.1

3tt.12{ 1.,'t.1.2-2 428-568

9,154,923

L___ia3fiA?i P efit.&tt L_ 9.879-5Lt P______2$\Jlt

The Companl recognized additional deferted tax assets amor.rnting to P3.4 million and

tcvcrscd a portion amounting to P0.5 million, as a result of the decrease and incrcasc in
the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI in 2022 and 2021, respectively. As at
December 31, 2022 aod 2021, the Companv recognized the deferted tax asset and deferred
txx liability in thc statcmenm r-rf furancid position arising from thc fair value changes of
financial assets at FVOCI amounting P0.4 million and P3.1 million, respectively.

The components of the Company's NOLCO and the _vear until which these are deductible
from taxable income are shown belov'.

Incurrc<l
Original Remaining

Balance
Yalid
Until

P 3,058,34'l
2,684,062
4.323.826

P

(" 4.323.826)

P10166229 (Prt32:L826) E-5J4239i

The Company's NOI.CO incurred in 2020 czn be claimed as deduction against its future
taxable income for the next Eve consecutive years, or until 2025, pursuant to Section 4

ftbbb) of RA No. 11494 and as implemented through Revenue Regulations (RR)

No. 25-2020. Ordinarily, NOI-CO can be carried over as a dcduction from gross income
for the next three consecutive years only.

2t)22
202\t
2019

2025
2025
2022

P 3,058,341
2,68/.,062

2,'u,331
429,.304

24,622

Exnired
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The Companv is subject to the MCIT, which is computed at 170 of gtoss income, as

dcfined undcr thc tax regulations or regular corporate income tax ff.CIT), whichcvcr is
higher. No RCIT rvas reported in 2022 and 2021 as the MCIT was higher than RCIT in
both lears. The details ofthe Cornpanv's Ir{CIT are shown belou'.

Year Original
Incurred Amount Expired

Remaining
Balance

Valid
Until

2o?2
2021
20zo
2019

P 49,592
205,379
174,333
82.786

2025
2021
2023
2022

E___512,090 (P _E2JE6) P___A29fi4

In 2022 and 2021, the Company cla.imed itemized deductions for tax purposes.

17. REI.ATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

17,1 Lease Agrcements with Alfiliated Companies

The Companr entered int<.r non-cancellable operating lease agreements with its
related parties s,herebr- the Companv leases portion of its office condominium unit
(shown as part of Propenv and Equipment account as the portion being leased out is
insignificant and could n<-rt be sold separateh, f<-rr its related parties'office spaces. The
lease agreemen$ are for a period of three years with renewal options. The rental income
earned fr<rm these leases totaled P2.3 million both in 2022 nd 2021 and is shown as
Rental under Income section of the satements of comprehensive income. There were no
outstanding receivables from these Eansactions as at December 31 ,2022 and 2O21-

17.2 l{ey Management Personnel Compensation

The compensation of key management personnel is broken down as follows:

202t

P 792,183
35.907

P______J2u,57 p 828^090

CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAI LIABILITIES

18.1 Comparison of Carrying Values and Fair Values

The carn'ing amouns and fair values of the categories of Enancial asses and financial
liabilities presented in the statements of financial position ate shown in the succeeding
page.

Salaries and rvages

Social securin- costs
P 683,700

37,557

18

P - P 49,592
- 205,379
_ 174,333

( 82.786) ________--:_

2022
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.lr l1

Notcs
Car.yina Fair Carrying Fair
V.lues Valuo valucs Valucs

L_-0LE6L121 L .E5IJ21 L1lEl31J"E9r P lur&Q,89d

C h .td esh equiv.lcnts
Rec€iqble frm €u$omc6 - n.r
R.c.ieblc ftu6 d@ing housc

P 38,0!D,0!m P 38,093,090
rJE2,106 1J82,106
775,967 n5,567

2083.804 2.083.8{X
42-334.967 423i4-967

P 43,121,195 P 43,127,195

12 ,764 2,225,79

1.563.566 1.5(,3.566
46.916.525 46.916.525

1,606,157 r,605,157 4, t'24,3't3 4,t-24,373
3?.92).000 37-920.000 5l-6{}0.000 5].('lr)iffr
3qJ26.157 39,525-151 56 )24 3,13 )6-324.3;l

6

2

\ t,\'()(:l

Fi|,t rci.l Liabiur;a-
r\( rm,,niz(d cosr

Prrable m cusromcrs
Pisblc ro cl€aring housr
Accouors palat lc

P t3,163,433 P 13,163,{33 p 14,t07,t54 P t4,t07,t54
461.261 4bl,26i

__J,W A 3-Om274 s 394_r 15 __j194.1U

lrr

1l

Ll6lr3J07 P 161EuQ2 Lr9.9!2if,6 L_U196:.5.)r

See Note 2.5 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of financial
instruments. A description of the Company's risk management obiectives and policies for
financial instruments is provided in Note 20.

18.2 Fair Yalue llierarchy

ln accordancc with PFRS 13, Fari I /ahte Aleanrtnent, thc fa"ir value of financial asscts and
liabilities and non-financial assets which are rneasured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recurring basis and those assets and Liabilities not measured at fair value but for which
fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three
Ier.els based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The fair value
hicrarchy has thc follou'ing levels as presented bclow-.

kvel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or [abilities
that an endry can access at the measurement date;

kvel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included urithin l-evel 1 that are observable
fr.rr the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) ot indirecdy (.e., derived ftom
prices); and,

kvel 3: inputs ftrr the asset or liability that are not based on obsewable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Thc lcvcl wi*rin which thc assct or Iiability is classificd is detcrmincd based on thc lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Irvel 1, a market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readilt and regulady available from an exchange, dealer, btoker,
industn'group, pricing scn'ice, or regulaton' agency, and thosc priccs reprcsent actual and
regularlr <>ccurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.



-36-

lior investments which do n(rt have quoted market price, the fair value is determined bl
using generalll acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or b)'reference to the
currcnt markct oF anothcr instrumcnt which is substantially the samc aftcr taking into
acc()unt the related credit risk of countelpaft.ies, or is calculated based on the expected
cash flows ofthe underl;,ing net asset base of the instrument.

When the Company uses valuation techoique, it ma-,rimizes the use of observable market
data rvhcre it is available and rclics as litde as possible on entity specific esdmates. If all
significant inpurs required to determine the fair value of an instrument are obsen able, the
instrument is included in kvel 2. Otherwise, it is included in I-er.el 3.

18.3 Financial Instruments Measured at Fait Value

Thc Company's financial assets at FVIPL amounting to Pl.6 million ard P4.7 million as

at December 31, 2022 and 2027, respectively, and financial assets at FVOCI amounting to
P37.9 million and P51.6 million as at December 31,2022 and 2(127, respectivelv, pertain to
lisrcd equin' sccurities s,hich are classified under Is'el 1. The fair values ofthese financial
assets are detemined direcdv bv reference to published prices in the PSE as at
Dcccmbcr 31, 2022 and 2021, rcspcctively.

The Ccrmpany has no financial iiabilities measued at fa.ir value as atDecember 37,2022

^nd 
2027.

Thcrc rvcre neithcr transfcrs bcrw'een different lcvels io both years.

18.4 Financial Instntments Measured at Amottized Cost for w-hich Fait Value
is Disclosed

The table belou, and in the succeeding page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the
Company's financial assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in
thc statcments of financial position but for which fair valuc is disclosed.

Lerel 1 I-evel 2 3 Toial

December 31, 2022

Finaacial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivablc ftom
customers - net

Receivable tirom

clcaringhousc
Other assets

Fbancial liabilities:
Pavable to customers

Accounts plablc

P 38,093,090 P P 38,093,090

1,382,106 1,382,106

'7'7 5,967

2.083.8M

775,961

2-08f-804

P

P 18.093,090 P

P

P____AJAL$U P___4233l4,96r

P P 13,163,433 P

3-0202'74

13,163133

P- P_l6JE3.7Ilf P 16183J07
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Lcrcl 1 Lcvcl 2 l3 Toral

Deccmbcr -11,2021

Fhateial arcb:
Cash .nd cash equivdents

Reccivablc from
cuslomers - oet

()thcr asscts

Fiaadal liabilitio:
Parablc to customcrs

Payable to cleariog house

Accounts payablc

P 43,127,195 P P

2,225,764

1.5(,3.56(,

P 43,'t27,t95

2,225,164

.5(,(:

P liJ?i-]95 P ljE9-llQ L-46]j1t iA

P 14,107,154 P 14,107,154

461,267 461,261

P P

5.394.',\ 15 5.394.115

L-P - P l99l)25i1, L--19.9625in

For financial asse6 and financial l.iabi-lities, u,ith fair values included in kvel 1,
management considers that the carrying amounts of those shoft-t€rm financial insmrments
approximatc thcir fair valucs.

The fair values of the financial assets included in Level 3 above, which are nor traded in
an active market, is determiocd bl using generallv acceptable pricing models and raluation
techniques or by reference to the current matket value of another insrument u/hich is
substantiallv the same after taking into account the related credit risk of counterpafties,
or is calculatcd bascd on thc cxpccted cash flows of thc undcdying nct asset base of thc
instrument.

18.5 Olfsetting ofFinancial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets and financial liabilities with net amounts presented in the
statements c.rf financial position arc subject to offscfting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements as presented belo$,.

Gross Arnounts Recognized irr rhe
Statements of Finaflcial Po6ition

Financial
Financial Liabilities

Assets Set-off

Net Arnourr
Preseirted in the

Staternenrs
of Finnncial

December 31, 2022
Rccd able from (Payabl€ (o)

Clerring Housr Llr.59L7 (P t2,822,8i2) P )15.9C1

Decemb€r 3l , 2021
Receivablc from (Payable to)

Cleiring Hous. P fzaluti ( P 7293tl}$) (E 16120 )

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are c<.rntinsent assets and liabilities that arise in the normal course of the Company's
operations, but are not reflected in the financial shtements. As at December 37,2022 and
2021, management is of the opinion that losses, if an1', f1q6 15.se commitments and
contingencies rvill not have material effects on the Company's financial statements.
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTTVES AND POLICIES

20.1 Credit Risk

Notes

The Companv is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its
opetating and investing activities. The Company's risk management is c<.xrrdinated in
close cooperation with the Company's BOD, and focuses on actively securing the
Companv's short to medium-term cash flou.s by mioimizing the exposure to financial
markets.

The most significant financial risks to u'hich the Companv is esposed to are described in
belorx,' and in the succeeding pages.

Gcnerally, thc maximum crcdit risk cxposure of irnancial asscts is the carq'ing ameunl ef
rl.re t-inancial assets as shorvn in the statements of financial position (or in the detailed
analysis provided in the n()tes to the financial statements), as summarized belcrw.

1

Cash and cash equivalents
Rcccivablc from customers
Receivable from clearing house
Other asserc

P 38,093,090
7,382,106

775,967
2.083.804

4
6

9

P 43,127,195
2,225,764

1.563.566

E___4231t567 L46.9tSS2t

Credit risk is the risk thar one parq'to a financial insm_rment mav fail to discharge an
.bligari.n irnd cause the other pam- t. incur a financial loss. Credit risk f<rr a bi,ker dealer
normalh'arises from unsettled customer and principal trades, loans and other dues, free
deliveries, securities lending ard borrowing, margin lending and underwriting agreements.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterpafties are reputable banks with high quality extemal cedit ratings. Included in
cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks which are insured by the phi.lippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to a ma-rimum coverage of p0.5 militn fo..*,ery d.poriL. p..
banking institution.

As for the Companl.'s receivable from customers, the Company trades only with recognized
and creditwonhy third parties. It is the Company,s policy that all customeE are subie;t to
credit verification procedures. In accordance with RBCA requirements, limis are imposed
to avoid large exposures to a single client or counterparq,, single debt issue and singli equity
issue relative to a panicular issuer companv and its group of companies.

Further, receivable fronr cusromers are secured (for fullr. and partialh, secured) br.shares
of stock owned bv the customers but held b,r' the Company (see Note 6). Cash flows are
expected upon realization of the collateral held in case where a default occurs at a given
time.

Vith respect to other assets, the Company is not exposed to any significant ctedit risk
exPosure to any single counterparty or any grcup of counterpanies having similat
characteristics.

2022
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There are no significant concentrations ofcredit risk in the Company. Except for some
rcccivablcs fully provided bv impairment allowancc, maragemcnt considers all the above
financial assets are of good credit quality.

20.2 Liquidity Risk

The Company manages its cash and investment position to meet its obligatioos arising
from sccurity brokeragc transactions aod other financial liabilities. Currendy, the
Company's excess cash is invested in equity securities classified as financid assets at
FVTPL and FVOCI, and sh()n-term placements.

As at December 31,2022 and 2021, the Companv's financial liabilities have contractual
msturities of one l,ear or less.

20,3 Market Nsk

The market risks to rvhich the Companv is exposed are as folloq':

kt) lntur$l Rtt? Wsk

The Companv monitors interest rate movements and makes adjustments c,,n irs
financial assets as mav be deemed necessary. At Dece mber 31,2022 aod 2021, rhe
Cr,,mpanl is exposed to changes in market interest rates of its savings deposits and
short-term placements, rvhich are subject to variable interest rates. Due to the
duration of short-tem: placenrents, management believes that the interest rate
sensitivitl'and its effect on the net income and equity are n<.rt signiEcant.

(b) Other Markct Pice Pjsk

This conrpares rvith the follos'ing volatilitr. rates and impact on pretax income and
net incorne (other comprehensir.e income and other comprehensive income after tax
in case of financial assets at FVOCI) as arDecember 31,2022:

lhb.d or De.rerc
Pd.x lncom. Nd Inom. PErr In.om. Nd lncom.

ln1pr.t.rlnrrc$. tp..Lr oiDcc(Jsc

P 25,.n6.,{n P 19.054,8IXr (? 25.{b.4{n)(p 1r.054,8ffD
_-______llt!2________l5ul{l 7.3812)( t54l2.r)

P--2$J!5 2 P____19ti3,9A (E==___25J45J;4) (Lr9,@!.921)

This compares with the follou'ing volatility rates and impact on pretax income and
net inc()me (other comprehensive income and other comprehensive income after tax
in casc of financial assets at FVOCD as at Dccember 31, 2021:

P(hx lnr, n. \crln.om. P..hi ln.omc N( ln..'n.

P i5..r!l.Ir(l P 26,1A,(r, e l534,Un)(p 26.7ra.({r))
___-__L!gllq ,_12.812 ( r 3q9 Zt9)( rt243tzr

E__-U.gD:r2 P ,?A.r:1SI: (p_____Uiat 7l9 (EJJAlra)
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The investments in PSE shares, which is classified as financial assets at FVOCI, are
considcrcd long-tcrm stratcgic im,estments, while other investments are held for
trading purposes. The investments are condnuously monitored and changes in
markct values of these equin' instmments are utilized in the Companv's favor.

27. CURRENT/NON-CURRENT DISTINCTION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below and in rhe succeeding page shows an analysis ofassets and liabilities
anallzed according to when the)'are expected to be recovered or setded:

llril fi2t
Vi(hi! EGIood \tithh B.rond

On.Yd OncYd Td.l Crnc Yp. -__Qff_yL Tobt

(:!!h ed c,!h quilJarc
1'ndiog @d jN66dr @irj6:

Claring hoq< - ncr

P 16,093,090 P P 3E,093,090 P 43,121,t9i P

1r2r

P 43.121,t95

1,606,t5?
l?,920,000

I,W,l51 1J24,r73
3?, ),0qt 51,@.c{D

1,124)11
,.64r0,(D

uE2,t06-t3l?.r(h2,7Ot-225J64
_JL5Pf1 - ________JE Xl

P 7,An3A E- 2____J2.II1,ln p tol 6ri]12 p p tor 671 132

l!.1.1

NotuOn dVlAe6:

Polld'.nd eqqpo.nr
P , P EE0,0(I' P U0,@ P P E!o,([O P 88O,Ur0

- 4,513511 451r,A11 4,981592 .1.981,69
- ]66,E& 166,8{10
t.6l9.{io 3lrq-932 I l!i?{, _______llz.il1 26.rf 54cr

Wnhi. Bcyord \\trhn Bgrnd
On Y.r On YE Tornl On. Ycr Otu Yci. ToEl

1.649.,110 ---___-?l5lJ!9 qlm-609 t.ls5?r), ?.1.]9_523

P_l Jlo P_____15r".1gl LtSlzlJ29 LIIZSLU{I E_t) .21 Lrllut2.ic]

P t.!,163,4!! P

tt.160.1r9 17.'6n-179 21.831.311 21.3a3 33r

It616,81,t 3,616,83.l 1,919.078 1Jt9,076
3 05i2ilJ l0illu)

L]{iq{ hod* - n6
P l3,r63,{:t P tdtol.ly P - P l4, r"l54

- 461251 - 4612n7
-aq!r.26 7r1a3t0 ___-____lJl5Jt0

N-oa-fh.ncirLabi)ti.t:

Lrlrquz:t LtL616.E1l P_-,10J17.01I p l1-ut-!:r p-_q!;r]t p _l!.li:r t!!

ZZ. SUPPI FMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAI REYENUE

Presented in the succeeding page is the supplementarl, information which is required b1'

the Bureau of lnternal Revenue @IR) under its exisring Rewenue Regulation @.R) to be
disclosed as paft ofthe notes to financia.l statements. This supplementary information is
not a required disclosure under PFRS.
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22.1 Requircments under RR No. 15-2010

The intbrmation on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the ta-\able year
undet RR No. 15-201() are as tbllows:

(,r) Oatpat I.'AT

ln 2022, rhc Compau, dcclared ouput VAT as follows:
Output

Tax Base VAT

Commissions P 3,387,818 P 406,538
Rent income .t)8t) 271_570

P____5-651898 P _ 6?lU08

The tax base lor \zAT purposes is based on gross receipts; hence, the amount may
not agree $.ith the balance reflected in the financial statements.

(b) Inpat VAT'

The movements in input VAT in 2022 are summaized below.

Balance at beginning of year
Services lodge under other accounts
Goods other than for resale or manufacture
Applicd auaiost output VAT

Balance at end of year P________2223

Input VAT is presented as part of Other Assets n the 2022 satement of financial
position.

k) Taxes on Inportatiort

The Company did not hav€ importation n 2022, and thus, it did not pay any
customs duties and tatiff fees duting the 1,ear.

(d) Ex'cite Ta-x

The Companv did n()t ha !.e anr'transaction sublect t<.r excise tax dtring2022,

(r) Dutnterthtrl,\h lp'lit

In 2022, docutr.rentan stamp ta: (DST) paid and accrued anrounting to
P4,792 pcnains to parments of insurance and suret),. bond.

P-
581,799
29,345

( 6()8-921 )



fi Taxes and Utenrt

The details ofTaxes and Licenses rvhich is presented as pan of Others under Costs
and Operating Expenses in the 2022 statement of ccrmprehensive incc.rme are shown
below.

Municipal license and permits
Real properw tax
DST
Others

Expanded
Compensation aod benefits
Final

E:_: 2]57

Lq lf,iitlltolclingTaxes

The details of total v'ithholding axes for the r.ear ended December 31, 2022
are shown below.

P 303,344
143,11()
t4.351

P r16L465

(lr) Deficietg Tax Assuvtext and Tax Caset

On October 31,2019, the Company received a letter from the BIR reiterating the
fina.l tax assessment for deficiencl taxes covering income taxes and expanded
rvithholding tax for the taxable year 2012 totaling to P3.94 million inclusive of
interest of P1.83 million. The Company submitted a protest/request for
reconsideration on December 5, 2019 to dispute the assessment.

As of December 31,2022, the Companv made a final compromise pavment on the
discussed assessment above amounting to P819,357 and P58,776 fcrr income taxes

and expanded v'ithh<-rlding tax, respectiveh .

The Companv does not have any other final deficiency tax assessments with the BIR
nor does it have tax cases <-,utstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside of the
BIR in anv open unxable years as of December 31,2022.

22.2 Requirements under RR No, 342020

RR No. 34-2020 prescribes the guidelines and procedures on the submission ofBIR Form
N<,r. 1709, transfer pricing documcotation and othcr supponing documents for rclatcd
parq' transactions. The Company is not covered by these requirements as the Company
did not fall in anl.ofthe categories identified under Section 2 ofRR No. 3,1-2020.

P 202,751
46,807
4,792
7.807


